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FOI Reference: CMTEDDFOI 2020-029

Information to be published Status
1. Access application Published
2. Decision notice Published
3. Documents and schedule Published
4. Additional information identified No
5. Fees N/A
6. Processing time (in working days) 31
7. Decision made by Ombudsman N/A
8. Additional information identified by Ombudsman N/A
9. Decision made by ACAT N/A
10. Additional information identified by ACAT N/A




From:
To:
Cc:

Subject:

Date:

CMTEDD FOI

Freedom of Information Request 18th February 2020
Tuesday, 18 February 2020 2:28:10 PM

Dear Sir/Madam,

I seeks access to the following information under s7 of the Freedom of Information Act

2016:

Any records or documents produced or held by WorkSafe ACT relating to the Grand

Central Towers building site in Phillip.
Any correspondence between WorkSafe ACT or its employees and any employee or
agent of an entity in the GeoCon Group in relation to the Grand Central Towers building

site in Phillip, between 15¢ August 2019 and 17" February 2020;
Any correspondence between WorkSafe ACT or its employees and any employee or
agent of an entity in the Adcon Group in relation to the Grand Central Towers building

site in Phillip, between 15¢ August 2019 and 17" February 2020;
Any other decisions, approvals or notices issued under the Work Health and Safety Act

2011 in relation to the Grand Central Towers site, issued on or after 1% August 2019.

In relation to s7of the Freedom of Information Act 2016,- considers that factors
favouring the disclosure of the information include:

1)

2)

3)

As they comprise decisions taken by a government agency, release of this information
would enhance the government’s accountability in line with Schedule 2, 2.1(a)(i);

This information would reveal the reason for one or more government decisions and any
background or contextual information that informed the decision in line with Schedule 2,
2.1(a)(viii);

If released, this information, as it deals with construction works involving excavation,
building, the removal of soil and potentially toxic sewerage works, would contribute to
the protection of the environment, in line with Schedule 2, 2.1(a)(viii)’

If released, this information, as it deals with construction works and the safety of
workers and the public, may reveal health risks or measures relating to public health and

safety.

Contact details to respond to this request are:

Name: I

Email Address: [N

Phone: [

If there are any queries or concerns about this request, or any way | can assist further, please give
me call.



Cheers,

| acknowledge the traditional Aboriginal owners of country throughout the ACT and pay my
respect to them, their culture and their Elders past, present and future.

Disclaimer: The information in this e-mail may be confidential and/or legally privileged. It is
intended solely for the addressee. Access to this e-mail by anyone else is unauthorised. If you
are not the intended recipient, any disclosure, copying, distribution or any action taken or
omitted to be taken in reliance on it, is prohibited and may be unlawful.
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Our ref: CMTEDDFOI 2020-029

FREEDOM OF INFORMATION REQUEST

| refer to your application under section 30 of the Freedom of Information Act 2016 (the
Act), received by the Chief Minister, Treasury and Economic Development Directorate
(CMTEDD) on 18 February 2020, in which you sought access to the following:

- seeks access to the following information under s7 of the Freedom of
Information Act 2016:

1) Any records or documents produced or held by WorkSafe ACT relating to the Grand
Central Towers building site in Phillip.

2) Any correspondence between WorkSafe ACT or its employees and any employee or agent
of an entity in the GeoCon Group in relation to the Grand Central Towers building site in
Phillip, between 1t August 2019 and 17" February 2020;

3) Any correspondence between WorkSafe ACT or its employees and any employee or agent
of an entity in the Adcon Group in relation to the Grand Central Towers building site in
Phillip, between 1t August 2019 and 17" February 2020;

4) Any other decisions, approvals or notices issued under the Work Health and Safety Act
2011 in relation to the Grand Central Towers site, issued on or after 1 August 2019.”

Authority

As an appointed Information Officer under section 18 of the Act, | am authorised to make

a decision on access or amendment to government information in the possession or
control of CMTEDD.

Timeframes

In accordance with section 40 of the Act, CMTEDD is required to provide a decision on
your access application by 8 April 2020.

Third Party Consultation

In making this decision, third party consultation was completed in accordance with
section 38 of the Act. The views of the relevant third parties were taken into
consideration when making this decision.

Decision on access

Chief Minister, Treasury and Economic Development
GPO Box 158 Canberra ACT 2601 | phone: 6207 7754 | www.act.gov.au



Searches were completed for relevant documents and nine documents were identified
that fall within the scope of your request.

| have included as Attachment A to this decision the schedule of relevant documents. This
provides a description of each document that falls within the scope of your request and
the access decision for each of those documents.

| have decided to grant access in full to two documents relevant to your request. | have
decided to grant partial access to seven documents as | consider it to contain information
that would, on balance, be contrary to the public interest to disclose under the test set
out in section 17 of the Act.

My access decisions are detailed further in the following statement of reasons and the
documents released to you are provided as Attachment B to this letter.

In accordance with section 54(2) of the Act a statement of reasons outlining my decisions
is below.

Statement of Reasons
In reaching my access decisions, | have taken the following into account:

e theAct;

e the content of the documents that fall within the scope of your request;
e the views of the relevant third party; and

e the Information Privacy Act 2014.

Exemption claimed

My reasons for deciding not to grant access to the identified documents and components
of these documents are as follows:

Public Interest

The Act has a presumption in favour of disclosure. As a decision maker | am required to
decide where, on balance, public interests lies. As part of this process | must consider
factors favouring disclosure and non-disclosure.

In Hogan v Hinch (2011) 243 CLR 506, [31] French CJ stated that when ‘used in a statute,
the term [public interest] derives its content from “the subject matter and the scope and
purpose” of the enactment in which it appears’. Section 17(1) of the Act sets out the test,
to be applied to determine whether disclosure of information would be contrary to the
public interest. These factors are found in subsection 17(2) and Schedule 2 of the Act.

Taking into consideration the information contained in the documents found to be within
the scope of your request, | have identified that the following public interest factors are
relevant to determine if release of the information contained within these documents is
within the ‘public interest’.



Factors favouring disclosure in the public interest:

(a) disclosure of the information could reasonably be expected to do any of the following:
(xiii) contribute to the administration of justice generally, including procedural
fairness.

Having considered the factor above, | consider that the release of these documents may
contribute to the administration of justice generally by allowing you to have a record of
the WorkSafe ACT documents that fall under the scope of your request. However, this
factor is to be balanced against the factors favouring non-disclosure.

Factors favouring nondisclosure in the public interest:

(a) disclosure of the information could reasonably be expected to do any of the following:

(ii) Prejudice the protection of an individual’s right to privacy or other rights under the
Human Rights Act 2004;

Taking into account the submissions put to me by the relevant third parties as part of the
consultation undertaken in accordance with section 38 of the Act and having reviewed
the documents, | consider that the protection of an individual’s right to privacy, especially
in the course of dealings with the ACT Government is a significant factor as the parties
involved have provided their personal information for the purposes of working with the
ACT Government. This, in my opinion, outweighs the benefit which may be derived from
releasing the personal information of the individual’s involved in this matter.

Individuals are entitled to expect that the personal information they have supplied as part
of this process will be dealt with in a manner that protects their privacy. Considering the
type of information to be withheld from release, | am satisfied that the factors in favour
of release can still be met while protecting the personal information of the individuals
involved. | therefore weight the factor for non-disclosure more highly than the factor in
favour of release in this instance. As a result, | have decided that release of this
information (email addresses, mobile numbers and names of individuals not employed by
the ACT Public Service) could prejudice their right to privacy under the Human Rights Act
2004.

Having applied the test outlined in section 17 of the Act and deciding that release of
personal information contained in the documents is not in the public interest to release, |
have redacted this information in seven of the documents in accordance with section
50(2). Noting the pro-disclosure intent of the Act, | am satisfied that redacting only the
information that | believe is not in the public interest to release will ensure that the intent
of the Act is met and will provide you with access to the majority of the information held
by CMTEDD within the scope of your request.

Folios 1-6 and 9 of the identified documents contain information that | consider, on
balance, to be contrary to the public interest to disclose under the test set out in section
17 of the Act or they contain information which is out of scope.



Charges

Pursuant to Freedom of Information (Fees) Determination 2017 (No 2) processing charges
are not applicable for this request because the total number of pages to be released to
you is below the charging threshold of 50 pages.

Online publishing — Disclosure Log

Under section 28 of the Act, CMTEDD maintains an online record of access applications
called a disclosure log. Your original access application, my decision and documents
released to you in response to your access application will be published in the CMTEDD
disclosure log after three working days after the date of my decision. Your personal
contact details will not be published. You may view CMTEDD disclosure log at:

https://www.cmtedd.act.gov.au/functions/foi/disclosure-log-2020.

Ombudsman Review

My decision on your access request is a reviewable decision as identified in Schedule 3 of
the Act. You have the right to seek Ombudsman review of this outcome under section 73
of the Act within 20 working days from the day that my decision is published in CMTEDD

disclosure log, or a longer period allowed by the Ombudsman.

We recommend using this form Applying for an Ombudsman Review to ensure you
provide all of the required information. Alternatively, you may write to the Ombudsman
at:

The ACT Ombudsman
GPO Box 442
CANBERRA ACT 2601

Via email: actfoi@ombudsman.gov.au

ACT Civil and Administrative Tribunal (ACAT) Review

Under section 84 of the Act, if a decision is made under section 82(1) on an Ombudsman
review, you may apply to the ACAT for review of the Ombudsman decision. Further
information may be obtained from the ACAT at:

ACT Civil and Administrative Tribunal
Level 4, 1 Moore St

GPO Box 370

Canberra City ACT 2601

Telephone: (02) 6207 1740
http://www.acat.act.gov.au/




Should you have any queries in relation to your request please contact me by telephone
on 6207 7754 or email CMTEDDFOI@act.gov.au.

Yours sincerely

Philip Dachs

Information Officer

Information Access Team

Chief Minister, Treasury and Economic Development Directorate

2 April 2020



ACT

Government

Chief Minister, Treasury and FREEDOM OF INFORMATION
Economic Development REQU EST SCHEDULE

WHAT ARE THE PARAMETERS OF THE REQUEST Reference NO.

Any records or documents produced or held by WorkSafe ACT relating to the Grand Central Towers building site in Phillip. Any correspondence between CMTEDDFOI 2020-029

WorkSafe ACT or its employees and any employee or agent of an entity in the GeoCon Group in relation to the Grand Central Towers building site in

Phillip, between 1 August 2019 and 17" February 2020; Any correspondence between WorkSafe ACT or its employees and any employee or agent of an

entity in the Adcon Group in relation to the Grand Central Towers building site in Phillip, between 1% August 2019 and 17* February 2020; Any other

decisions, approvals or notices issued under the Work Health and Safety Act 2011 in relation to the Grand Central Towers site, issued on or after 15

August 2019.

Ref No Page number Description Date Status Reason for Exemption Online Release Status

1 1-4 WPV-P05757-VKODM9 Workplace visit report 1 Aug 2019 Partial Sch 2 52.2 (a)(ii) Yes
2 5-8 WPV-P05757-VMF6MR Workplace visit report 10 Dec 2019 Partial Sch 2 52.2 (a)(ii) Yes
3 9-12 WPV-P05757-VMGOH2 Workplace visit report 13 Dec 2019 Partial Sch 2 52.2 (a)(ii) Yes
4 13-16 Notifiable Incident Report 13 Dec 2019 Partial Sch 2 52.2 (a)(ii) Yes
5 17-19 Improvement notice 16 Dec 2019 Partial Sch 2 52.2 (a)(ii) Yes
6 20 Email — part of above Improvement notice 16 Dec 2019 Partial Sch 2 52.2 (a)(ii) Yes
7 21-31 Photos as attachment to Improvement notice Full Yes
8 32-38 Plans as attachment to Improvement notice Full Yes
9 39-44 Issue notice report — WPV-P05757-VMGGO6 16 Dec 2019 Partial Sch 2 52.2 (a)(ii) Yes

Total No

of Docs
9











































Address line 2

Suburb * State * Postcode *

Job title/position *

Carpenter

Main duties *

Formwork

Enter at least one phone number: *

Home phone number Work phone number Mobile number

o

Email

Type of employment *

Full-time permanent

Type of worker *

Other (note: most employees will fall into this category)

Details of injury/illness/damage etc and any medical treatment *

orker fell from one |level to another through a penetration in the deck.
orker has sustained 3 broken boned in his foot and some bruising

Details of the accident/incident

Date of the accident/incident *

12 12 2019

Time of the accident/incident *

03 40 PM

Were there any witnesses/other involved person? *
O Yes @ No

Describe the accident/incident *

orker was patching a formwork deck, worker removed a piece of ply that was screwed down and fell
through the deck.

Name of supervisor or person in control of the site/location at the time of the accident/incident *

B -

Address where accident/incident occurred

(@  Same as business address



Where did the incident occur (e.g. plant room, roof) *

Level 7 Tower B

Environment and workplace conditions

Describe the workplace conditions at the time of the accident/incident (e.g. lighting, floor surface, weather, housekeeping etc) *

Good lighting, weather was fine approx 28 degrees with a light breeze. Houskeeing was OK.
Utilities

Does this NIR relate to damage to a Utilities Asset (e.g. power, gas, sewerage, water street lighting cable, etc.) *

Q Yes @ No

Task and supervision

What task was being performed when the accident/incident occurred? *

Formwork

Plant, equipment, tools, materials and substances

What plant/substances were being used? (provide details, e.g. model serial number, registration number etc) *

Meva formwork, form ply, hand tools

Risk assessment and where required for high risk construction work, SWMS

Was a risk assessment undertaken prior to commencing work? *
@ Yes Q No
Was a safe work method statement (SWMS) prepared if the work was high risk construction work? *

@ Yes Q No

Note: See the Work Health and Safety Regulations 2011 s.299 for more information

Outcomes - please complete relevant parts of this section

Estimated date of resumption of work *

14 2 2020

Action that has been or will be taken to prevent recurrence *

Work has been stopped in the area. All areas are being made safe. Workers will be toolbox talked and
SWMS will be reviewed before any further works continues with the MEVA system.

Name of person completing this form

Title Given name * Family name *

Mr &) o



Enter at least one phone number: *

Home phone number Work phone number Mobile number

e

Submitting this form will automatically create an account for you on the Access Canberra website. The account allows you to view,
update or track your submission. Responses to your submission will be sent to your email address.

Email *

geocon.com.au

Job title/position *

Safety and Quality Officer






Th s Not ce may nc ude d rect ons concern ngthe measures to be taken to remedy the contravent on or prevent the ke ycontravent on, or matters or
act vt es caus ngthe contravent onor ke ycontravent ontowh ch the not ce re ates The nspectord rects you to;

Endertake arev ew ofre evant safe work method statements and make the necessary changes so the content of the safe work method statements I

The nspector recommends that you:
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